
CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

 
AGENDA 

October 9, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER:   
 
B.   ROLL CALL:   Vacant ___   LEEHY____   HARRIS____ 
    MIAZGA ___   GUSTAFSON___  
     
 STAFF PRESENT:  THONGVANH____   
 
C. PRESENTATION 

1. Neal Kwong Award – Nathan Behrens 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

1. September 25, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
F. CONSENT AGENDA:        

1. General Disbursements through: 9/18/19   $64,459.74 
          Payroll through:  9/15/19   $20,780.91 

2. Nalisha Nandkumar, Assistant to the City Administrator 6 Month Performance 
Evaluation 

3. Designation of Official Newspaper 
4. Accept FEMA 2018 Assistance to Fire Grant  
5. Approval of Charitable/Lawful Gambling License Application – Girls on the Run 

Twin Cities 
 

G:  POLICY ITEMS:  
 
H. INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
I. COMMUNITY FORUM: 

Please limit comments to 3 minutes per person.  Items brought before the Council will be referred 
for consideration.  Council may ask questions for clarification, but no council action or discussion 
will be held on these items.   

 
J. ADJOURNMENT: 

Page 1 of 37



BLANK PAGE 

Page 2 of 37



Item Neal Kwong Youth Citizen Award – Nathan Behrens 

Description The Neal Kwong Youth Citizenship Award was established September 2000 in 
memory of Neal Kwong.  Neal Kwong, a youth leader and Eagle Scout, died 
suddenly early in August while at Boy Scout camp.  Neal was an active coach, 
volunteer, and great young citizen.  In his memory, we wish to establish the Neal 
Kwong Youth Citizenship Award to recognize outstanding youth leaders, 
volunteers, and citizens in their work here in Falcon Heights. 

We recommend that the award be granted annually to one person between the age 
of 12 and 21, who displays outstanding leadership, volunteerism, or citizenship 
while making contributions to the Falcon Heights community.  The recipient would 
be recognized by the City Council, receive acknowledgement on a plaque at City 
Hall, and be highlighted in the city newsletter.  These youth could be recommended 
through the schools, a nomination process, or by individual citizens of Falcon 
Heights. 

Mr. Gary Kwong would recommend awarding the Neal Kwong Citizenship Award 
to Nathan Behrens. 

Nathan is 17 years old and a junior at Roseville Area High School.  Nathan has been 
active in Boy Scouts of America from grades 1-11.  He has also volunteered in a 
variety of capacities, including, but not limited to, assisting with Sunday School at 
Gloria Dei Lutheran Church, and assisting with programming and community 
service projects for Roseville Parks and Recreation and Gibbs Farm Historical 
Museum.  

Budget Impact No significate impact on the adopted 2019 budget.  

Attachment(s) • Resolution 19-34 Awarding the Neal Kwong Youth Citizen Award to Nathan
Behrens

• Nomination Form and Recommendation Letter

Meeting Date October 9, 2019 
Agenda Item Presentation C1 

Attachment Resolution and Nomination Form 
Submitted By Amanda Lor, Administrative 

Coordinator 

Page 3 of 37



Action(s) 
Requested 

Motion to approve the attached resolution and award the Neal Kwong 
Youth Citizen Award to Nathan Behrens. 

Page 4 of 37



Page 5 of 37



Page 6 of 37



Page 7 of 37



Page 8 of 37



Page 9 of 37



Page 10 of 37



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

October 9, 2019 

No. 19-34 
- - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

RESOLUTION AWARDING THE NEAL KWONG YOUTH CITIZENSHIP AWARD TO
NATHAN BEHRENS 

WHEREAS, the Neal Kwong Citizenship Award was established in September 2000 in memory of Neal 
Kwong who passed away suddenly at a Boy Scout Camp; and 

WHEREAS, the award will be granted annually to one person between the age of 12 and 21, who 
displays outstanding leadership, volunteerism, or citizenship while making contributions to the Falcon 
Heights; and 

WHEREAS, the recipient would be recognized by the City Council, receive acknowledgement on a 
plaque at city hall, and be highlighted in the city newsletter; and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota 
award Nathan Behrens the Neal Kwong Youth Citizenship Award.  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - 

Moved by: Approved by: ________________________ 
    Randy Gustafson 
    Mayor  

VACANT  ____      In Favor  Attested by:  ________________________ 
GUSTAFSON      Sack Thongvanh 
HARRIS ____  Against     City Administrator 
LEEHY 
MIAZGA 

Page 11 of 37



BLANK PAGE 

Page 12 of 37



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

  
AGENDA 

September 25, 2019 at 7:00 P.M.   
  
  
A.      CALL TO ORDER: 
  
B.      ROLL CALL:  Vacant ___   LEEHY__X__   HARRIS_X___ 
                                                 MIAZGA _X__   GUSTAFSON_X__ 
                                                  
          STAFF PRESENT:    THONGVANH_X___   
 
C.      PRESENTATION 
 
Mayor Gustafson 
I would like to amend tonight’s agenda. We have a presentation from the University of 
Minnesota President Joan T.A. Gabel. 
 

1. University of Minnesota President Joan T.A. Gabel - Introduction  
Joan T.A. Gabel 
We love being your neighbor and resident in Falcon Heights. I spent the last few weeks doing 
thematic engagement at the university where it highlighted food, engagement, and community 
service. On behalf of the entire community, we appreciate how the U of M and Falcon Heights 
work together in safety, infrastructure, and creating a positive impact on the community and 
students. Thank you for having me here, and I look forward to working together. 
 
D.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. September 11, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes  
 
Councilmember Leehy asked about a fire term and City Administrator Thongvanh clarified it.  
 

Approved 4-0 
 
E.      PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
F.      CONSENT AGENDA:                                                                                     

1. General Disbursements through:  9/18/19 $64,459.74 
   Payroll through: 9/15/19 $20,780.91 

2. Website Redesign Proposal 
3. Designation of Polling Places for 2020 Elections 

 
 
 

Page 13 of 37



Council Member Leehy 
We are excited to have the city’s new website redesign. It will come from the Inclusion Fund, 
because we see this as a value for inclusivity in our city, make it is ADA compliant, and easier 
navigation for our residents and guests.  
  
Councilmember Harris stated that it would be easier to read and find city events and resources.   
 

Council Member Leehy 1st Moved  
Council Member Miazga 2nd Moved 

Approved 4-0 
 
G:      POLICY ITEMS: 

1. Adoption and Certification of the 2020 Proposed Preliminary Levy 
City Administrator Thongvanh 
Each year the city is required to adopt a premiere levy by the end of September. The final 
adoption will be in December. The City Council must set a maximum levy, and it cannot go 
above the limit. They can reduce it but cannot increase the levy limit for the city. In terms of 
Local Government Aid (LGA) that the city receives from the state, the percentage of the budget 
revenue was over 50%. The increase from 2019 to 2020 was $75,732, which shows a good year 
for the city. The LGA will increase from $603,532 to $679,264 in 2020.  
 
Fiscal Disparities is based on the needs of the community.  From 2017 - 2018, the city had a 24% 
increase, then another 24% increase in 2019. The distribution dollars for 2020 increased by 
$85,091 over the 2019 level. My goal is to reduce the levy to single digits and right now, we are 
sitting at a 7.9% increase this year.  
  
In 2019, the median value homes had a tax allotment from the city of $1,003, and the proposal 
for 2020 is $1,068. It is a $65 increase, which means a $5.42 per month increase. The budget 
hearing is scheduled for Wednesday, December 11th, 2019, at 7pm at Falcon Heights City Hall. 
 
Council Member Miazga 
There is an error on page 31.  It states 2018 when it should be 2020.  
City Administrator Thongvanh will correct before the city council signs the resolution.  
 

Council Member Harris Moved, Approved 4-0 
 
H.                INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
  
Council Member Miazga 

• NYFS “A Taste of Northeast” event is on Thursday, October 10, at 5:30 pm.  
• I have been serving on the Improving Service Delivery Committee for the League of 

Minnesota Cities.  We are ready to make our recommendations, and they should be 
delivered in November. 

 
  

Page 14 of 37



Council Member Leehy 
• Falcon Heights Youth Commissioners have openings in Parks and Recreation, 

Community Engagement, and Environment Commission.  It is open to Falcon Heights 
high school students.   

• Parks and Recreation Commission meeting is on Monday, October 7 at 6:30pm.  We will 
meet at the Community Park Building on Roselawn Avenue and Cleveland Avenue. 

• Falcon Heights Fire Department Open House is on Saturday, October 5.  They will have 
fire demos, activities and more.  I encourage everyone to attend the event. 

 
Council Member Harris 

• Planning Commission met on Tuesday, and we had a presentation from the Environment 
Commission about native landscaping and changes to some ordinances.   

• The Planning Commission discussed having a vacant property ordinance where you can 
register a vacant house if you own one. We asked the city staff to do more research on it. 
We will follow up at the next meeting. 

 
Mayor Gustafson 

•  Community Engagement Commission met last week and are still in the process of 
finding a theme for Human Rights Day.  The next meeting is on Monday, October 21 at 
7pm. 

• November 18, is the third Cultivating a Caring Community event.  The theme is Gray 
Area Thinking by Elli Krug.  The event starts at 6pm-8:30pm.  I encourage everyone to 
attend the event. 

• Wednesday, October 2, is National Coffee with a Cop day.  Ramsey County Sheriff's 
Office will host the event at Caribou Coffee, 3673 Lexington Avenue North, Arden Hills 

• Falcon Heights Fire Department Open House is on Saturday, October 5.  All are 
welcome to attend.  It will be a fun event. 

 
City Administrator Thongvanh 

• Strategic Planning is on December 6th and 7th, from 9am-3:30pm. 
• The Basketball Court is delayed again due to the rain. We hope to have it installed this 

fall.  
• We cannot apply for the Minnesota DNR grant for the Community Park building because 

we do not own the land that host our Community Park. Nalisha will continue to look at 
other grant options for the park.  

• Larpenteur street construction should be finishing soon. We sent a request to the county 
for an end date and have not heard back. 

 
I.                    COMMUNITY FORUM: 
  

J.                    ADJOURNMENT: 8:01 P.M. 
  
 

Page 15 of 37



BLANK PAGE 

Page 16 of 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item General Disbursements and Payroll 

Description 
 

General Disbursements through: 10/02/19  $70,029.97 
Payroll through: 9/30/19 $18,242.55 

Budget Impact The general disbursements and payroll are consistent with the budget.  

Attachment(s) • General Disbursements and Payroll  

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve general 
disbursements and payroll. 

 

Meeting Date October 9, 2019 
Agenda Item Consent  F1 

Attachment General Disbursements and Payroll 
Submitted By Roland Olson, Finance Director 

Page 17 of 37



BLANK PAGE 

Page 18 of 37



Page 19 of 37



Page 20 of 37



Page 21 of 37



Page 22 of 37



Page 23 of 37



Page 24 of 37



Page 25 of 37



BLANK PAGE 

Page 26 of 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Assistant to the City Administrator Nalisha Nandkumar 6 Month Employee Step 
Adjustment  
 

Description 
 

Nalisha was appointed by the City Council on February 13th 2019 with a start date 
of March 4, 2019.  Nalisha has completed her first 6 months with the City.  It is the 
practice of the City to reward after the 6 month probationary period with up to a 5% 
step increase in their base salary. 
 

Budget Impact There are available funds for this step adjustment. 

Attachment(s) N/A 

Action(s) 
Requested 

I recommend that the Falcon Heights City Council approve a 5% step adjustment 
for Nalisha Nandkumar effective September 4, 2019.   
 

 
 

Meeting Date October 9, 2019 
Agenda Item Consent F2    

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

Page 27 of 37



BLANK PAGE 

Page 28 of 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Designation of Official Newspaper 

Description 
 

State statute requires that a city designate a legal newspaper of general circulation 
in the city. This newspaper is used when the city is required to publish legal 
notification regarding public hearings, elections and city financial matters. The 
Roseville Review has been the official newspaper for many years, but it has ceased 
publication. 
 
Staff recommends that the City designate the Pioneer Press as the official 
newspaper for the remainder of 2019. 
 

 
Budget Impact Funds have been allocated in the 2019 Budget for any costs associated with public 

notices. 
 
 

Attachment(s) N/A 
 
 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Designate the Pioneer Press as the City’s official newspaper for 2019. 

 
 

Meeting Date October 9, 2019 
Agenda Item Consent F3 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

Page 29 of 37



BLANK PAGE 

Page 30 of 37



Item Accept FEMA 2018 Assistance Fire Grant 

Description In 2018, the City submitted an application for the FEMA Assistance to Firefighters 
Grants in the amount of $111,000.  The request included Personal Protective 
Equipment (helmets, boots, hoods, coats and pants) for $63,000 and Modify 
Facilities (Source Capture Exhaust Systems) for $48,000.    

The City was denied the request for Personal Protective Equipment, but awarded 
funds for the Source Capture Exhaust Systems.  The grant is a 95/5 match.   

Budget Impact The budget impact of accepting the grant is $2,285.72 

Attachment(s) N/A 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Motion to accept the FEMA 2018 Assistance to Firefighters Grant and authorized 
the City Administrator or his designee to execute all necessary documents.   

Meeting Date October 9, 2019 
Agenda Item Consent F4 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

Page 31 of 37



Page 32 of 37

BLANK PAGE 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Approval of Charitable/Lawful Gambling License Application – Girls on the Run 
Twin Cities 
 

Description 
 

Girls on the Run Twin Cities is hosting an event at the University of Minnesota St. 
Paul Student Center on Thursday, October 24. It will be a LUNAFEST film 
screening, and they will also hold a raffle. The Minnesota Gambling Control Board 
requires 501(c)(3) non-profits to obtain approval from the city where a gambling 
premise is located.  

 
Budget Impact N/A 

 
Attachment(s) • Charitable/Lawful Gambling License Application 

 
Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommend approving the charitable/lawful gambling license application. 

 
 

Meeting Date October 9, 2019 
Agenda Item Consent F5 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Justin Markon, Community 

Development Coordinator 

Page 33 of 37



Page 34 of 37



Page 35 of 37



Page 36 of 37



Page 37 of 37


	1 - CCAgenda_10-09-19
	C1- RCA_Neal Kwong Award Nathan Behrens
	C1(2) - Nathan Behrens
	C1(3) - Resolution 19-34 Awarding the Neal Kwong Citizen Award to Nathan Behrens
	D1 - CCMIN_25_Sept
	F#(2) - Gambling License Application_Redacted
	F1 - RCA_Payables
	F1(2) Payables-10-9-19
	F2 - RCA_6-Month Performance Evaluation_Nalisha Nandkumar
	F3 - RCA_Designation of Official Newspaper
	F4 - RCA_Accepting FEMA 2018 Assistance to Firefighters Grants
	F5 - RCA_Approval of Charitable Lawful Gambling License Application
	Blank Page



